
AUDIT AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
THURSDAY, 24 OCTOBER 2019

A MEETING of the AUDIT AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE will be held in the COUNCIL 

CHAMBERS. COUNCIL HEADQUARTERS, NEWTOWN ST BOSWELLS on THURSDAY, 24 

OCTOBER 2019 at 10.00 am

J. J. WILKINSON,
Clerk to the Council,

17 October 2019

BUSINESS

1. Apologies for Absence. 

2. Order of Business. 

3. Declarations of Interest. 

AUDIT & SCRUTINY BUSINESS

4. Minute. (Pages 3 - 8) 5 mins

Minute of Meeting of the Audit and Scrutiny Committee held on 23 
September 2019 to be approved and signed by the Chairman. (Copy 
attached).

SCRUTINY BUSINESS

5. Petitions 60 mins

(a)  Petitions Procedure at Committee (Pages 9 - 
10)

(Copy attached).
(b)  Kelso Play Parks Petition (Pages 11 - 

30)
(i) Petition – “Save Kelso’s Playparks”.  (Copy 

attached).

(ii) Briefing paper by Service Director Assets & 
Infrastructure.  (Copy attached). 

(c)  Hawick Play Parks Petition (Pages 31 - 
54)

(i) Petition – Hawick Play Parks.  (Copy attached).

Public Document Pack



(ii) Briefing paper by Service Director Assets & 
Infrastructure.  (Copy attached).

6. Community Access to Schools (Pages 55 - 60) 10 mins

Consider report by Interim Service Director Children & Young People.  (Copy 
attached).

7. Any Other Scrutiny Items Previously Circulated. 

8. Any Other Scrutiny Items which the Chairman Decides are Urgent. 

NOTES
1. Timings given above are only indicative and not intended to inhibit Members’ 

discussions.

2. Members are reminded that, if they have a pecuniary or non-pecuniary interest in any 
item of business coming before the meeting, that interest should be declared prior to 
commencement of discussion on that item. Such declaration will be recorded in the 
Minute of the meeting.

Membership of Committee:- Councillors S. Bell (Chairman), H. Anderson, K. Chapman, 
J. A. Fullarton, S. Hamilton (Vice-Chairman), N. Richards, H. Scott, E. Thornton-Nicol, S. Scott, 
Mr M Middlemiss and Ms H Barnett

Please direct any enquiries to Eileen Graham - Tel No: 01835 826585
E-mail:  eegraham@scotborders.gov.uk



SCOTTISH BORDERS COUNCIL
AUDIT AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

MINUTES of Meeting of the AUDIT AND 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE held in Council 
Chambers. Council Headquarters, Newtown 
St Boswells on Monday, 23 September 2019 
at 10.15 am

Present:-
Councillors S. Bell (Chairman), H. Anderson, K. Chapman, J. A. Fullarton, 
S. Hamilton (Vice-Chairman), N. Richards, H. Scott, S. Scott, E. Thornton-
Nicol, Ms H. Barnett and Mr M. Middlemiss.

In Attendance:- Chief Financial Officer, Chief Officer Audit and Risk. Democratic Services 
Officer (J Turnbull). 
Ms G Woolman, Mr A Haseeb and Mr G Samson – Audit Scotland

1. WELCOME AND INTRODUCTIONS 
The Chairman welcomed those present to the meeting.

SCRUTINY BUSINESS

2. MINUTE. 
There had been circulated copies of the Minutes of 22 August 2019.  

DECISION
APPROVED for signature by the Chairman.

AUDIT  BUSINESS

3. ANNUAL TREASURY MANAGEMENT REPORT 2018/19 
  3.1 With reference to paragraph 6 of the Minute of 24 September 2018, there had been 

circulated copies of a report by the Chief Financial Officer presenting the annual report of 
treasury management activities undertaken during the 2018/19 financial year.  The report 
was presented to Audit and Scrutiny Committee for review as part of their scrutiny role in 
relation to treasury management activities in the Council.  The CIPFA Code of Practice on 
Treasury Management in the Public Services (the Code) required an annual report on 
treasury management to be submitted to Council following the end of each financial year.  
This report highlighted the Council’s treasury activity in the year ended 31 March 2019 
and the performance of the Treasury function.  Appendix 1 to the report comprised the 
annual report of treasury management activities for 2018/19 and contained an analysis of 
performance against targets set in relation to Prudential and Treasury Management 
Indicators.  All of the performance comparisons reported upon were based on the revised 
indicators agreed as part of the mid-year report approved on 29 November 2018.

3.2 The Appendix also showed the Council’s borrowing requirement to fund the capital 
investment undertaken during 2018/19, how much the Council actually borrowed against 
the sums budgeted, and the level of external debt carried on the Council’s balance sheet 

Page 3

Agenda Item 4



within approved limits.  The Council had, whenever possible, deferred borrowing and used 
surplus cash rather than undertaking new borrowing.  However, the Council had 
undertaken long term borrowing for debt rescheduling during the year, amounting to 
£10m.  Treasury management activity had been undertaken in compliance with approved 
policy and the Code and the Council remained under-borrowed against its Capital 
Financing Requirement (CFR) as at 31 March 2019. 

3.3 The report was fully discussed and in response to questions, the Chief Financial Officer, 
Mr Robertson, advised that the Council sought to maintain a level debt profile.  Where 
opportunities were identified to refinance debt, these were considered to ensure best 
value over the 10 – 25-year period.   With regard to the £10m debt rescheduling this was 
to take advantage of a lower interest rate of 2.74% as opposed to 4.80%. Regarding 
capital expenditure, Mr Robertson acknowledged that there had been slippage on a 
number of projects and reassured Members that these were being monitored with 
appropriate action taken.  Audit Scotland added that although slippage had increased in 
comparison to previous years, this was not considered significant.      

DECISION 
         AGREED TO RECOMMEND TO COUNCIL:

  *          (a) that treasury management activity in the year to 31 March 2019 was carried 
out in compliance with the approved Treasury Management Strategy and 
Policy as detailed the report and Appendix 1, attached to the agenda; and 

  *          (b) to increase the investment limit for AAA Money Market Funds from £20m to 
£25m. 

4. EXTERNAL AUDITORS' ANNUAL AUDIT REPORTS 2018/19 
4.1 Scottish Borders Council Annual Report and Accounts 

With reference to paragraph 7.1 of the Minute of 24 September 2018, there had been 
circulated copies of a report by Audit Scotland, the Council’s external auditors.   The 
report explained that Audit Scotland had now completed the audit of the Council’s Annual 
Accounts for 2018/19 and had given an unqualified audit opinion in all cases.    In addition 
Audit Scotland has reached positive conclusions in respect of financial sustainability, 
financial management, governance, transparency and value for money.  Ms Woolman, 
Audit Scotland was in attendance and summarised the report; in addition she advised that 
there were no material adjustments or unadjusted errors arising from the audit. 

 4.2 In response to questions, Ms Woolman advised that Audit Scotland had carried out an 
audit on community engagement which would provide comparative information across 
local authorities.   Regarding the £10.2m purchase price for Lowood Estate, Mr Robertson 
clarified that this figure included legal fees and tax costs.  He further advised that the 
Estate had been acquired for economic development and it was reasonable to pay all 
legal fees associated with such transactions.   Regarding payroll creditors’ balances, Mr 
Robertson acknowledged that the Council had not taken sufficient action to reflect the 
Audit Scotland opinion of 2017/18; however, configuration changes to the system had 
now been concluded as required. Regarding invoice payment performance Mr Robertson 
stated 84% of invoices were paid within 30 days and all invoices were processed within 
two days of receipt; an update on progress would be provided to the December 2019 
meeting.  Regarding the arrangements around recurrent and non-recurrent savings, Mr 
Robertson clarified that there were no formal targets around temporary savings, 
incidences occurred when projects had been delayed.  With regard to digital 
transformation, a number of lessons had been learned including that necessity for the 
Council to be fully involved and retain ownership of such projects.

4.3 Charitable Trusts administered by Scottish Borders Council 
With reference to paragraph 7.2 of the Minute of 24 September 2018, there had been 
circulated copies of a report by Audit Scotland in respect of Charitable Trusts 
administered by Scottish Borders Council.  Mr Haseeb of Audit Scotland advised that 

Page 4



there were no material adjustments to the financial statements. However, he highlighted 
that the cash flow statements for Common Good Funds had required a number of 
changes and these had been amended.   

4.4 Scottish Borders Council Pension Fund
With reference to paragraph 7.1 of the Minute 24 September 2018, there had been 
circulated copies of a report by Audit Scotland in respect of Scottish Borders Council 
Pension Fund.  Mr Hasseb of Audit Scotland presented the report, advising that there 
were no material adjustments to the unaudited financial statement arising from the audit.  
Mr Haseeb highlighted that the triennial valuation showed a funding level of 114% - which 
was the highest in Scotland.  In response to questions, Mr Robertson advised that the 
Council policy was auto-enrolment for new employees; the Fund’s investment strategy 
focused increasingly on income bearing assets which would fund future pension 
payments.  The next triannual valuation was March 2020 and would set contribution rates 
for the next three years. Regarding members’ lack of attendance at training events during 
the year, Mr Robertson stressed the importance of this issue and advised that it had been 
addressed with the individuals concerned.   

DECISION
NOTED the Annual Reports from the Council’s External Auditors prior to Council 
approval. 

5. SCOTTISH BORDERS COUNCIL ANNUAL ACCOUNTS 2018/19 
  5.1 With reference to paragraph 8 of the Minute of 24 September 2018, there had been 

circulated copies of the Council’s audited Annual Accounts for 2018/19. The audit 
appointment of Audit Scotland for Scottish Borders Council accounts included the 
requirement to provide an auditor’s report for the Council as well as related charities.  
 Audit Scotland had now completed the audit of the Council’s Annual Accounts for 
2018/19 and had given an unqualified audit opinion in all cases.  In addition, Audit 
Scotland concurred with Management’s accounting treatment and judgements; and had 
reached positive conclusions in respect of financial sustainability, financial management, 
governance, transparency and value for money.   Audit Scotland had identified two 
recommendations for improvement requiring action and these had been accepted by 
Management and would be enacted within the agreed timescales. 

 5.2 As required under the Local Authority Accounts (Scotland) Regulations 2014, the audited 
Annual Accounts for Scottish Borders Council, SBC Common Good Funds, the SBC 
Charitable Trusts, Bridge Homes LLP, SB Supports LLP and SB Cares LLP, Lowood 
Tweedbank Ltd and Scottish Borders Council’s Pension Fund had been presented to the 
Audit and Scrutiny Committee prior to signature.  

 5.3 The report also referred to KPMG’s external audit of the Council subsidiaries SB Cares, 
SB Supports and Bridge Homes which were not registered charities.  KPMG had 
concluded that the ongoing review of SB Cares was a going concern and had included 
this comment in its audit opinion.  Late in the audit process KPMG had identified a 
consistency issue with actuarial valuation of pensions fund liabilities for SB Cares.  
Regarding Bridge Homes, KPMG had raised no issues and had no matters to report. 

 5.4 In response to a question regarding contingent liabilities and contingent assets, Mr 
Robertson advised that further information on failure to conclude the land sale transaction 
would be provided in due course.  Regarding the High Court ruling with regard to 
Guaranteed Minimum Pensions (GMP), there was still material uncertainty as 
reconciliation was still being progressed.   With regard to the claim against Capita Plc, the 
Council had requested a cash settlement and the claim was still ongoing.   Mr Robertson 
also advised that the £613k exit packages had been calculated in accordance with 
Council policy.  

DECISION
Page 5



AGREED to APPROVE the following accounts for officer signature and Council 
approval:

(a) the Scottish Borders Council’s audited Annual Accounts for the year to 31 
March 2019;

(b) the Scottish Borders Council’s Pension Fund audited Annual Accounts for 
the year to 31 March 2019;

(c) the Scottish Borders Council Common Good Funds’ (Charity SC031538) 
audited Annual Accounts for the year to 31 March 2019; 

(d) the SBC Welfare Trust (Charity SC044765) audited Annual Accounts for the 
year to 31 March 2019; 

(e) the SBC Education Trust (Charity SC044762) audited Annual Accounts for 
the year to 31 March 2019; 

(f) the SBC Community Enhancement Trust (Charity SC044764) audited Annual 
Accounts for the year to 31 March 2019; 

(g) the Ormiston Trust for Institute Fund (Charity SC019162) audited Annual 
Accounts for the year to 31 March 2019;

(h) the Scottish Borders Council Charity Funds’ (Charity SC043896) audited 
Annual Accounts for the year to 31 March 2019; 

(i) the Bridge Homes LLP audited Annual Accounts for the year to 31 March 
2019;

 
(j) the SB Supports LLP audited Annual Accounts for the year to 31 March 

2019;

(k) the SB Cares audited Annual Accounts for the year to the 31 March 2019; 
and 

(l) Lowood Tweedbank Ltd Annual Accounts for the 30 November 2018 to the 
31 March 2019 (part year). 

6. FRAUD AND IRREGULARITY UPDATE 2018/19 
There had been circulated copies of a report by Audit Scotland, which contained a 
summary of the cases of fraud and other irregularities at public bodies reported by 
external auditors for the financial year 2018/19.  The report was designed to share best 
practice and lessons learned.   The Chief Officer Audit & Risk, Ms Stacey, explained that 
the report had been discussed at a number of national forums and was a valuable 
resource to establish key controls, monitoring effectiveness, as well as sharing prevention 
and detection fraud controls.    In response to a question, Ms Stacey advised that the 
report would be considered at the Corporate Fraud Steering Group, any 
recommendations arising would be presented to Corporate Management Team.

DECISION 
AGREED to request that the Corporate Fraud Steering Group consider the Audit 
Scotland’s Fraud and Irregularity Update 2018/19 and make any recommendations 
arising to Corporate Management Team.

7. INTERNAL AUDIT WORK TO JULY 2019 
Page 6



With reference to paragraph 5 of the Minute of 13 May 2019, there had been circulated 
copies of a report by the Chief Officer Audit and Risk which provided details of the recent 
work carried out by Internal Audit and the recommended audit actions agreed by 
Management to improve internal controls and governance arrangements.   The work 
Internal Audit had carried out during the period 1 April to 2 August 2019 was detailed in 
the report.  During the period a total of five Internal Audit reports had been issued.  There 
were 10 recommendations made relating to three of the reports which had been accepted 
by Management for implementation. An Executive Summary of the final Internal Audit 
reports issued, including audit objective, findings, good practice, recommendations (where 
appropriate) and the Chief Officer Audit and Risk’s independent and objective opinion on 
the adequacy of the control environment and governance arrangements within each audit 
area, was included in Appendix 1 to the report.  Ms Stacey summarised the findings in the 
report and advised that, once finalised, the executive summary of the Attendance 
Management Internal Audit Report would be presented to Committee in November 2019.   
In response to questions, Ms Stacey advised that in relation to Emergency Works there 
had been challenges for Management in responding to the draft internal audit report and 
the recommendations.  However, discussions had been constructive and they were 
reviewing processes to ensure sustainability in the longer term.   An action plan had also 
been agreed which would be followed up by Internal Audit before determining the timing 
of the next planned audit for this service.  With regard to the anomalies identified with 
performance management data, all queries had been corrected prior to the LGBF 
submission by the Council.     The Committee made reference to the 26 September 2019 
Council report on the Strategic Review of SB Cares – Future Provision of Adult Social 
Care Services; Mr Robertson clarified that the Council report reflected the outcome of the 
Internal Audit consultancy review of SB Cares commissioned by the Chief Executive.    

DECISION:
(a) NOTED:

(i) the final assurance reports issued in the period from 1 April to 2 
August 2019 associated with the delivery of the approved Internal 
Audit Annual Plan 2019/20; and

(ii) the Internal Audit consultancy and other work undertaken in this 
period.

(b) AGREED to acknowledge the assurance provided on internal controls and 
governance arrangements in place for the areas covered by this Internal 
Audit work.

8. THANKS 
The Chairman thanked Audit Scotland for their attendance and the comprehensive, clear 
reports provided to the Committee.

The meeting concluded at 12.55 pm.   

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



1

Scottish Borders Council
Extract from the Audit & Scrutiny Committee Petitions Procedure

14. The procedure at the meeting, for each petition considered, shall be as 
follows:

(i) the meeting shall be in public unless the subject matter of the petition 
would be deemed to be confidential under the terms of Section 7A of 
the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973;

(ii) the principal petitioner, or named deputy, shall give a statement in 
explanation of the petition;

(iii) there will be an opportunity for Members of the Committee to ask 
questions of the petitioner or their named deputy;

(iv) there will be an opportunity for any Director(s), Executive Member(s) 
and Community Planning Partner representative(s) present to ask 
questions of the petitioner or their named deputy;

(v) a response to the petition may be heard from a Director, Executive 
Member and/or Community Planning Partner representative present 
at the meeting;

(vi) there will be an opportunity for Members of the Committee to ask 
questions of any Director, Executive Member(s) and Community 
Planning Partner representative(s) present at the meeting;

(vii) there will be an opportunity for the petitioner or their named deputy 
to ask questions of any Elected Member, Director or Community 
Planning Partner representative present at the meeting; 

(viii)Members of the Committee shall then discuss the information 
available and consider their findings.  The Committee may defer a 
decision should further information be required. 

Note:  any contribution on behalf of the petition from a second or other 
speaker(s) shall be at the discretion of the Chairman.  The public will not 
be allowed to speak at the meeting unless invited to do so by the 
Chairman.

15. The Audit & Scrutiny Committee shall agree to one of the following:-

(i) refer the petition to another Committee or Director, with or without a 
recommendation or comment.  That Committee or Director shall then 
make the final decision which could include taking no further action; 

Page 9

Agenda Item 5a



2

(ii) refer the petition to the relevant Community Planning Partner, with or 
without a recommendation or comment, if appropriate; 

(iii) that the issue(s) raised do not merit or do not require further action. 

16. The decision of the Audit & Scrutiny Committee, and any reason for that 
decision, shall be recorded in the Minute of the Meeting and a copy of the 
Minute shall be sent to the principal petitioner by Democratic Services 
staff.  Where the petition is referred to a Director or another body, the 
responsibility for communicating the final outcome of the petition is also 
referred.  Updates on these outcomes will be provided to the Audit & 
Scrutiny Committee.  

17. There will be no right of appeal in response to a final decision made in 
response to a petition.

18. The usage and effectiveness of the petitions procedure shall be reviewed 
on an annual basis.

 

Page 10



Page 11

Agenda Item 5b



Page 12



Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Audit & Scrutiny Committee – 24 October 2019

KELSO PLAY PARKS PETITION 

Report by Service Director Assets & Infrastructure

AUDIT & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

24 October 2019

1 PURPOSE AND SUMMARY

1.1 This report summarises the content and context of a petition 
received by the Audit & Scrutiny Committee on 6 August 2019.  The 
petition, titled ‘Save Kelso’s Playparks’, inclusive of the 
accompanying change.org submission, received a total of 492 
signatures from the Borders Area. 

2 BACKGROUND

2.1 Scottish Borders Council proposed a Play Facilities Strategy as context for 
the substantial Capital investment of £5.036m in play facilities over a 10 
year investment programme which was approved by Scottish Borders 
Council on 31 May 2018.  The Council had agreed to review the distribution 
of play equipment provision across play parks in the Borders, which can 1) 
inform decision making around future investment in communities and 2) 
guide the rationalisation of obsolete play facilities which are deemed no 
longer fit for purpose, ensuring a cost neutral impact on established 
budgets within the service. 

2.2 In conjunction with the strategic investment across the region, at Scottish 
Borders Council on 31 May 2018 members agreed to; 

 Changes to the scheme of delegation to give authority to the Service 
Director Assets and Infrastructure to “after consultation with local 
Members, the Chief Financial Officer and the Chief Legal Officer, 
declare play parks obsolete or those surplus to community 
requirements and arrange for the removal of equipment and 
disposal, if appropriate.” 

Following approval, a report was taken to Cheviot Area Partnership on 19 
June 2019.

2.3   In this context, officers have undertaken an appraisal of the wider network 
of play equipment aimed at responding to the issue of low play value, 
which SBC has within its play facilities assets. The evaluation has been 
undertaken to ensure that SBC retains and develops a network of valued, 
well equipped spaces for local communities.  In the Scottish Borders 
currently the quantity of play provision is high per head of population, but 
the quality is very low (compared to national benchmarking). This 
diminishes the wider benefits of these facilities to communities. This 
programme of investment will address the challenge of balancing quantity 
against quality, ensuring optimal provision of play facilities across the 
Scottish Borders.

Page 25



Audit & Scrutiny Committee – 24 October 2019

2.4 Low value play facilities, where there is a recognised need (i.e. they are the 
only play park in the locality) will be identified as priorities for potential 
future investment (subject to a future paper).

2.5   As no additional revenue resources are being provided to support the long 
term management and maintenance of the new play parks being created, 
the removal of obsolete facilities is essential to ensure there is a cost 
neutral impact on established budgets with the service. No play facility will 
be decommissioned until the appropriate investment in new facilities in that 
locality have been completed.  Any sites of decommissioned play parks 
would be reviewed for future use; options such as local food growing, 
informal play or community use could be considered.

2.6 In the Kelso context, the following play parks were recommended for 
decommissioning:

PLAY PARK 

P
LA

Y
 

V
A

LU
E

Fi
T 

S
C

O
R

E ALTERNATIVE LOCATION 
NEARBY

Kelso Berrymoss Court L 14 Kelso Sydenham Court (B)
Kelso High Croft L 13 Kelso Croft Park
Kelso Meadow Court L 16 Kelso Croft Park
Kelso Orchard Park M 20 Kelso Croft Park
Kelso Rosewood Gardens L 16 Kelso Shedden Park
Kelso Springwood Rise L 16 Kelso Wallaceneuk
Kelso Spylaw Park L 15 Kelso Wallaceneuk
Kelso Sydenham Court (A) L 14 Kelso Sydenham Court (B)
Kelso Woodside Gardens L 14 Kelso Shedden Park

2.7 Details of the planned disinvestment along with an explanation about the 
reasons behind the need to decommission play parks were taken to all five 
Area Partnerships in early 2019.  Following this a consultation was 
undertaken, inviting feedback via email or telephone.  The responses to 
this are outlined in section 4 below.

3 PETITION

3.1 Of the 492 signatures received, 107 respondents included comments. Of 
these, 18% cited concerns about children’s health and wellbeing, 13% cited 
concerns about proximity of nearest play facilities on offer and 2% cited 
concerns about road safety.  The remaining 77% of comments comprised 
general objections to the proposal in principle.

4 CONSULTATION

4.1 Within the 72 responses received during the consultation process, 207 
individual unsupportive comments were received, broken down 
geographically as follows;
Berwickshire - 17%
Cheviot - 23% 
Eildon - 23% 
Teviot & Liddesdale - 22% 
Tweeddale - 15% 

Page 26



Audit & Scrutiny Committee – 24 October 2019

4.2 The main concerns raised in these responses were across 4 broad themes:

Concerned about children’s health and wellbeing, 
independence and opportunity for social interaction

17%

Concerned about need for parks or safe and quiet 
spaces closer to home and/or distance to 
alternatives (9% regarding travel and times; 7% 
regarding dependency on cars/public transport; 5% 
regarding road safety)

14%

Concerned that the parks were currently well used 12%

Concerned that sites will become unsightly if left 
unmaintained

5%

A further 18 specific comments ranging from 3% to 0.5% of total were 
received, those being:
Lack of parking at alternative or new, need to invest in these smaller parks, 
currently in good condition/not obsolete, children not able to go to 
alternative or new on own, lack of maintenance currently so no cost so why 
close, increased carbon emissions from vehicle use/effect on climate 
change, lack of consultation, lack of toilets at new, parks provided through 
Developer Contribution/Planning Condition, new facilities don’t cater for age 
of children using the smaller parks, poor condition of equipment at 
alternatives, only facility in village, new housing planned so a short-sighted 
vision, big new parks are only for special visits, having more parks per 
head of population should be seen as a good thing, too few facilities as it is, 
a slap in the face to a community currently working with the council to 
mitigate the effect of cuts, and reduced choice.

4.3 A further 2 respondents put forward 3 supportive comments, those being:
Play park is hardly used, selling off the land to residents would reduce 
maintenance costs, and parents would like to take on the play park 
concerned.
Several queries for further information and/or discussion were also 
included.

5 FINANCE

5.1 The Parks and Environment Service have a revenue spend of approximately 
£100,000 per annum for maintaining play facilities.

5.2 In order to maintain the new play facilities approved at Council on 31 May 
2018, it was highlighted, a reduction in a significant number of existing low 
value facilities would be required to ensure the revenue impact on the 
service was cost neutral.

5.3 The annual cost of maintaining the full programme of new play facilities is 
estimated at £30k, and low value parks to this value will be declared 
obsolete and decommissioned, once the appropriate investment in that 
locality has been completed.

5.4 A replacement fund has been created for the new facilities, to allow for 
replacement at the end of their useful life.  The existing play facilities do 
not have such a fund, therefore, no budget exists, to refurbish or replace 
them in the future.

Page 27



Audit & Scrutiny Committee – 24 October 2019

6 COMMENTARY

6.1 The response to the Consultation, and the petition, is summarised above at 
4.2. Comments regarding the concerns raised during consultation and from 
the petition are noted below;

Concerns raised Commentary

Concerned about children’s 
health and wellbeing, 
independence and opportunity 
for social interaction

The removal of equipment will not 
preclude use of these space for 
recreation – once they are made safe 
they remain available to children and 
communities for informal recreation, 
community food growing/community 
gardening or other such community 
based usage. The Council may also 
consider the disposal of the asset.

Concerned about need for parks 
or safe and quiet spaces closer 
to home and/or distance to 
alternatives (including travel 
times; dependency on 
cars/public transport;road 
safety)

See above point – these spaces 
remain available to communities for 
local, informal use, therefore 
removing the need to travel for 
incidental play. 

Concerned that the parks were 
currently well used

The Councils observed usage pattern 
is low or high. Low is defined as the 
area is never usually observed as in 
use when maintenance is taking place, 
and observations during maintenance 
suggest that play equipment is not 
frequently used.   High is defined as 
the area is always in use when 
maintenance is taking place, and 
observations during maintenance 
suggest the equipment is very 
frequently used.
According to officers observations 
from regular inspections these sites 
are deemed Low Usage.

Concerned that sites will become 
unsightly if left unmaintained

Sites will be cleared of all equipment 
and made available for alternative 
uses, mitigating any visual impact. 
The Council will continue to maintain 
the areas as fit for use.

Approved by:

Page 28



Audit & Scrutiny Committee – 24 October 2019

Martin Joyce
Service Director Assets & Infrastructure    Signature ………………………………….

Author(s)
Name Designation and Contact Number
Jason Hedley Chief Officer Roads

Background Papers:  
Capital Programme 2018/19 – Investment in Play Areas and Outdoor Spaces - Report 
by Service Director Assets & Infrastructure. Scottish Borders Council, 31 May 2018

Public Play Facilities Strategy – Cheviot - Report by Service Director Assets & 
Infrastructure. Cheviot Area Partnership, 19 June 2019

Previous Minute Reference:  
Scottish Borders Council, 31 May 2018, Item 9 - 
https://scottishborders.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=132&MId=3726
&Ver=4
Cheviot Area Partnership, 19 June, 2019, Item 3 - 
https://scottishborders.moderngov.co.uk/mgAi.aspx?ID=23290

Note – You can get this document on tape, in Braille, large print and various computer 
formats by contacting the address below.  Craig Blackie can also give information on 
other language translations as well as providing additional copies.

Contact us at Craig Blackie, Scottish Borders Council, Council Headquarters, Newtown 
St. Boswells – Tel. No. 01835 824000 Ext. 8036; Email- cblackie@scotborders.gov.uk 

Page 29

https://scottishborders.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=132&MId=3726&Ver=4
https://scottishborders.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=132&MId=3726&Ver=4
https://scottishborders.moderngov.co.uk/mgAi.aspx?ID=23290
mailto:cblackie@scotborders.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Page 31

Agenda Item 5c



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 47



Page 48



Audit & Scrutiny Committee – 24 October 2019

PLAY PARKS PETITION 

Report by Service Director Assets & Infrastructure

AUDIT & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

24 October 2019

1 PURPOSE AND SUMMARY

1.1 This report summarises the content and context of a petition 
received by the Audit & Scrutiny Committee on 1 September 2019. 
The petition, titled ‘Stop Scottish Borders Council Closing 
Playparks’, inclusive of the accompanying change.org submission, 
received a total of 581 signatures from the Borders Area.  In the 
supporting statement submitted with the petition it states “bigger 
and better facilities should not be the justification to remove 
smaller parks situated in the various housing estates in Hawick and 
the Scottish Borders.”

2 BACKGROUND

2.1 Scottish Borders Council proposed a Play Facilities Strategy as context for 
the substantial Capital investment of £5.036m in play facilities over a 10 
year investment programme which was approved by Scottish Borders 
Council on 31 May 2018.  As agreed within the Capital Investment Plan, the 
Council had agreed to review the distribution of play equipment provision 
across play parks in the Borders, which can 1) inform decision making 
around future investment in communities and 2) guide the rationalisation 
of obsolete play facilities which are deemed no longer fit for purpose, 
ensuring a cost neutral impact on established budgets within the service. 

2.2 In conjunction with the strategic investment across the region, at Scottish 
Borders Council on 31 May 2018 members agreed to; 

 Changes to the scheme of delegation to give authority to the Service 
Director Assets and Infrastructure to “after consultation with local 
Members, the Chief Financial Officer and the Chief Legal Officer, 
declare play parks obsolete or those surplus to community 
requirements and arrange for the removal of equipment and 
disposal, if appropriate.” 

Following approval, a report was taken to Teviot and Liddesdale Area 
Partnership on 11 June 2019.

2.3   In this context, officers have undertaken an appraisal of the wider network 
of play equipment aimed at responding to the issue of low play value, 
which SBC has within its play facilities assets. The evaluation has been 
undertaken to ensure that SBC retains and develops a network of valued, 
well equipped spaces for local communities. In the Scottish Borders 
currently the quantity of play provision is high per head of population, but 

Page 49



Audit & Scrutiny Committee – 24 October 2019

the quality is very low (compared to national benchmarking). This 
diminishes the wider benefits of these facilities to communities. This 
programme of investment will address the challenge of balancing quantity 
against quality, ensuring optimal provision of play facilities across the 
Scottish Borders.

2.4  Low value play facilities, where there is a recognised need (i.e. they are the 
only play park in the locality) will be identified as priorities for potential 
future investment (subject to a future paper).

2.5   As no additional revenue resources are being provided to support the long 
term management and maintenance of the new play parks being created, 
the removal of obsolete facilities is essential to ensure there is a cost 
neutral impact on established budgets with the service. No play facility will 
be decommissioned until the appropriate investment in new facilities in that 
locality have been completed.  Any sites of decommissioned play parks 
would be reviewed for future use; options such as local food growing, 
informal play or community use could be considered.

2.6 In total, 74 play parks are proposed for decommissioning. In Hawick, the 
following play parks were recommended for decommissioning:

PLAY PARK 

P
LA

Y
 

V
A

LU
E

FI
T 

S
C

O
R

E
ALTERNATIVE LOCATION 
NEARBY

Hawick Bowden Road L 19 Hawick Stirches
Hawick Burnfoot School M 19 Hawick Sleepy Valley
Hawick Green Terrace M 15.5 Hawick Moat Park
Hawick Hislop Gardens M 18 Hawick The Stirches
Hawick Leaburn Drive L 14 Hawick Weensland Road
Hawick Mayfield L 16.5 Hawick Wellfield
Hawick Millers Knowe M 19 Hawick Underhaugh
Hawick Waverley Walk L 15 Hawick Wilton Lodge Park
Hawick Wellington Court L 14 Hawick Wilton Lodge Park
Hawick Wilson Drive L 13 Hawick Sleepy Valley

2.7 Details of the planned disinvestment along with an explanation about the 
reasons behind the need to decommission play parks were taken to all five 
Area Partnerships in early 2019. Following this a consultation was 
undertaken, inviting feedback via email or telephone. The responses to this 
are outlined in section 4 below.

3 PETITION  

3.1 Of the 581 signatures received, 100 respondents included comments.  Of 
these, 20% cited concern about children’s health and wellbeing; 7% 
referred to a lack of facilities for young people locally; 12% cited concern 
about lack of safe and accessible play in their area as a result of the 
proposals; 9% advised they felt the play parks near them were well used; 
and 2% felt that the large park (Wilton Lodge Park) was too busy. The 
remaining 50% of comments comprised general objections to the proposal 
in principle.

Page 50



Audit & Scrutiny Committee – 24 October 2019

4 CONSULTATION

4.1 Within the 72 responses received during the consultation process, 207 
individual unsupportive comments were received, broken down 
geographically as follows;
Berwickshire - 17%
Cheviot - 23% 
Eildon - 23% 
Teviot & Liddesdale - 22% 
Tweeddale - 15% 

4.2 The main concerns raised in all these responses were across 4 broad 
themes:

Concerned about children’s health and wellbeing, 
independence and opportunity for social interaction

17%

Concerned about need for parks or safe and quiet 
spaces closer to home and/or distance to 
alternatives (9% regarding travel and times; 7% 
regarding dependency on cars/public transport; 5% 
regarding road safety)

14%

Concerned that the parks were currently well used 12%

Concerned that sites will become unsightly if left 
unmaintained

5%

A further 18 specific comments ranging from 3% to 0.5% of total were 
received, those being:
Lack of parking at alternative or new, need to invest in these smaller parks, 
currently in good condition/not obsolete, children not able to go to 
alternative or new on own, lack of maintenance currently so no cost so why 
close, increased carbon emissions from vehicle use/effect on climate 
change, lack of consultation, lack of toilets at new, parks provided through 
Developer Contribution/Planning Condition, new facilities don’t cater for age 
of children using the smaller parks, poor condition of equipment at 
alternatives, only facility in village, new housing planned so a short-sighted 
vision, big new parks are only for special visits, having more parks per 
head of population should be seen as a good thing, too few facilities as it is, 
a slap in the face to a community currently working with the council to 
mitigate the effect of cuts, and reduced choice.

4.3 A further 2 respondents put forward 3 supportive comments, those being:
Play park is hardly used, selling off the land to residents would reduce 
maintenance costs, and parents would like to take on the play park 
concerned.
Several queries for further information and/or discussion were also 
included.

5 FINANCE

5.1 The Parks and Environment Service have a revenue spend of approximately 
£100,000 per annum for maintaining play facilities.

Page 51



Audit & Scrutiny Committee – 24 October 2019

5.2 In order to maintain the new play facilities approved at Council on 31 May 
2018, it was highlighted, a reduction in a significant number of existing low 
value facilities would be required to ensure the revenue impact on the 
service was cost neutral.

5.3 The annual cost of maintaining the full programme of new play facilities is 
estimated at £30k, and low value parks to this value will be declared 
obsolete and decommissioned, once the appropriate investment in that 
locality has been completed.

5.4 A replacement fund has been created for the new facilities, to allow for 
replacement at the end of their useful life.  The existing play facilities do 
not have such a fund, therefore, no budget exists, to refurbish or replace 
them in the future.

6 COMMENTARY

6.1 The response to the Consultation, and the petition, is summarised above at 
4.2.  Comments regarding the concerns raised during consultation and 
from the petition are noted below;

Concerns raised Commentary

Concerned about children’s 
health and wellbeing, 
independence and opportunity 
for social interaction

The removal of equipment will not 
preclude use of these space for 
recreation – once they are made safe 
they remain available to children and 
communities for informal recreation, 
community food growing/community 
gardening or other such community 
based usage. The Council may also 
consider the disposal of the asset.

Concerned about need for parks 
or safe and quiet spaces closer 
to home and/or distance to 
alternatives (including travel 
times; dependency on 
cars/public transport; road 
safety)

See above point – these spaces 
remain available to communities for 
local, informal use, therefore 
removing the need to travel for 
incidental play. 

Concerned that the parks were 
currently well used

The Councils observed usage pattern 
is low or high. Low is defined as the 
area is never usually observed as in 
use when maintenance is taking place, 
and observations during maintenance 
suggest that play equipment is not 
frequently used.   High is defined as 
the area is always in use when 
maintenance is taking place, and 
observations during maintenance 
suggest the equipment is very 
frequently used.
According to officers observations 
from regular inspections these sites 
are deemed Low Usage.

Page 52



Audit & Scrutiny Committee – 24 October 2019

Concerned that sites will become 
unsightly if left unmaintained

Sites will be cleared of all equipment 
and made available for alternative 
uses, mitigating any visual impact. 
The Council will continue to maintain 
the areas as fit for use.

Approved by
Martin Joyce
Service Director Assets & Infrastructure  Signature……………………………………

Author(s)
Name Designation and Contact Number
Jason Hedley Chief Officer Roads

Background Papers:  
Capital Programme 2018/19 – Investment in Play Areas and Outdoor Spaces - Report 
by Service Director Assets & Infrastructure. Scottish Borders Council, 31 May 2018
Public Play Facilities Strategy – Teviot & Liddesdale - Report by Service Director 
Assets & Infrastructure. Teviot & Liddesdale Partnership, 19 June 2019

Previous Minute Reference:  
Scottish Borders Council, 31 May 2018, Item 9 - 
https://scottishborders.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=132&MId=3726
&Ver=4
Cheviot Area Partnership, 11 June, 2019, Item 3 - 
https://scottishborders.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=427&MId=4162
&Ver=4

Note – You can get this document on tape, in Braille, large print and various computer 
formats by contacting the address below.  Craig Blackie can also give information on 
other language translations as well as providing additional copies.

Contact us at Craig Blackie, Scottish Borders Council, Council Headquarters, Newtown 
St. Boswells – Tel. No. 01835 824000 Ext. 8036; Email- cblackie@scotborders.gov.uk

Page 53

https://scottishborders.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=132&MId=3726&Ver=4
https://scottishborders.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=132&MId=3726&Ver=4
https://scottishborders.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=427&MId=4162&Ver=4
https://scottishborders.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=427&MId=4162&Ver=4
mailto:cblackie@scotborders.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Audit & Scrutiny Committee – 24 October 2019 

COMMUNITY ACCESS TO SCHOOLS

Report by Interim Service Director, Children & Young People 

AUDIT & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

24 October 2019

1 PURPOSE AND SUMMARY

1.1 This report provides details for a proposed review of community 
access to schools. 

   
1.2 At its meeting on 19 April 2018, the Audit and Scrutiny Committee 

requested a scoping paper on community access to schools.  There is no 
specific policy relating to which schools are available for community use.  
This report covers the work planned to produce a new policy for community 
access to schools.  

1.3 Given the many differences across the Borders with regard to community 
access to schools and the amount of information that will need to be 
gathered, it is proposed that a steering group of officers be convened to 
take this forward.  Initially, the group would carry out a full analysis of all 
community use of schools recorded over a twelve-month period.  This work 
would be reported to the Audit & Scrutiny Committee by June 2020.  The 
next stage would be for the group to formulate policy and undertake 
consultation, prior to any new policy being presented for Elected Member 
approval.

1.4 The final stage for the group would be to monitor the implementation of the 
new policy and processes.  This would include evaluation of user groups at 
key points in the first year of implementation.  The outcome of this 
evaluation and the impact of the policy would then be reported to the Audit 
and Scrutiny Committee by August 2021.   

2 RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1 I recommend that the Audit and Scrutiny Committee approves the 
process as detailed in section 5 of this report for reviewing 
community access to schools.

Page 55

Agenda Item 6



Audit & Scrutiny Committee – 24 October 2019 

3 BACKGROUND

3.1 At its meeting on 19 April 2018, the Audit and Scrutiny Committee 
requested a scoping paper on community access to schools.  The paper, 
covering the work planned, would include details of which schools were 
categorised as community schools, accessibility, letting, service 
arrangements and charging policy. 

3.2 Across the school estate, there is a variety of arrangements for community 
access to schools.  These differ between the PPP schools and other High 
Schools, as well as those for Primary Schools.  Some sports facilities in 
schools are managed by Live Borders and some facilities by Management 
Committees. 

4 SCHOOL ESTATE – CURRENT ARRANGEMENTS

4.1 There is no specific policy relating to which schools are available for 
community use although three schools: Philiphaugh Primary in Selkirk, St 
Ronan’s Primary in Innerleithen, and Burnfoot Primary in Hawick, are 
classified as “Community Schools”.

4.2 Three High Schools (Earlston, Eyemouth and Berwickshire) are operated by 
AMEY Facilities Management on behalf of the PPP funding contract with set 
hours being available for community use.  

4.3 In Peebles and Kelso High Schools, the sports facilities are run and 
managed by Live Borders, with the School being granted full use during 
school hours.  

4.4 The new campus in Jedburgh will be different in the opportunity for 
concurrent use of the building by both school and community at any time.  
As SBC’s strategic partner, Live Borders will manage this.

4.5 In the other four High Schools, community access and use of the premises 
is arranged directly with the School, with costs for caretaking and cleaning 
met from the charges applied.  

4.6 Across the primary estate, there is significant variation in community use.  
While any School can accept a request for community use, the availability of 
a janitor or caretaker to enable such a request to be met can on occasion be 
a barrier.  Many facilities are offered for use during school term only, with 
groups and organisations being forced to limit their activity accordingly.  

4.7 Pricing is based on SBC policy which should ensure consistency, however, 
there are historic and local arrangements which sit out-with this structure.  
Within the policy itself there are anomalies in charges applied to different 
groups and for uses of spaces.

4.8 A brief analysis of community use of schools highlights that there are times 
when several buildings in the same community are being utilised at the 
same times, each with separate caretaking cover, leading to inefficiency in 
the operating model. 

Page 56



Audit & Scrutiny Committee – 24 October 2019 

5 WORK PLAN 

5.1 Given the many differences across the Borders with regard to community 
access to schools and the amount of information that will need to be 
gathered, it is proposed that a steering group of officers be convened to 
take this forward.  This group would comprise officers from Education, the 
Corporate Landlord, Facilities Management, Finance, Community Learning 
and Development and Live Borders, and would agree the principles of a 
review of community use of schools.

5.2 The group would carry out a full analysis of all community use of schools 
over the twelve-month period to June 2019.  This would be reported on a 
school by school basis – number of bookings, number of groups, charges 
applied, total income and costs.  The number of booking requests declined 
(with reasons) would also be included where available. 

5.3 The next stage would be for the group to formulate policy by considering 
rationalising processes, including booking systems, charging and the 
number of sites available at specific times.  Any implications for staffing and 
finance would also be taken into account.  Consultation would then be 
undertaken with user groups, schools, community groups (including 
Community Councils) and Area Partnerships.  The proposed new policy 
would then require approval by Elected Members at full Council.  It is 
anticipated this work could take up to a year to conclude however it is 
proposed that as much as possible be reported back by June 2020.

5.4 The final stage for the group would be to monitor the implementation of the 
new policy and processes.  This would include evaluation of user groups at 
key points in the first year of implementation.  The outcome of this 
evaluation and the impact of the policy would then be reported to the Audit 
and Scrutiny Committee by August 2021.   

6 IMPLICATIONS

6.1 Financial 

There are no costs attached to any of the recommendations contained in 
this report however there is potential for efficiencies to be made in utilities, 
janitorial overtime and cleaning through alignment of bookings to fewer 
buildings across the same community and these would be captured in the 
Fit for 2024 agenda.

6.2 Risk and Mitigations

At the moment, there are inconsistencies across the Scottish Borders 
relating to community access to schools.  There is a variety of reasons for 
this, some to do with historic practices, others to do with suitability of each 
school and availability of staff and/or budget.  It is important that a review 
is carried out to establish a policy on community access to schools to ensure 
maximum use of facilities where practicable and within budget.  It may not 
be possible to provide equity across the Borders due to the nature of school 
buildings and the cost of opening facilities out-with school hours, but 
reasons for this would be explained within the policy.

Page 57



Audit & Scrutiny Committee – 24 October 2019 

6.3 Equalities

An Equalities Impact Assessment will be carried out as part of the 
development of any new policy on community access to schools.  

6.4 Acting Sustainably 

There are no economic, social or environmental effects of carrying out the 
review of community access to school and any future impacts will be 
accounted for within any new policy.

6.5 Carbon Management

There is no impact on the Council’s carbon emissions from the 
recommendations within this report.  

6.6 Rural Proofing

Rural proofing will be part of the consideration for any new policy on 
community access to schools.

6.7 Changes to Scheme of Administration or Scheme of Delegation

No changes are required to either the Scheme of Administration or the 
Scheme of Delegation as a result of the proposals in this report.  

7 CONSULTATION

7.1 The Chief Financial Officer, the Monitoring Officer, the Chief Legal Officer, 
the Chief Officer Audit and Risk, the Service Director HR, the Clerk to the 
Council and Corporate Communications have been consulted and any 
comments received have been incorporated into the final report.

7.2 Consultation is also taking place with officers from Live Borders.

Approved by

Stuart Easingwood
Interim Service Director
Children & Young People                            Signature …………………………………

Author(s)
Name Designation and Contact Number
Lesley Munro Lead Education Officer  Tel:  01835 824000 ext 8046

Background Papers:  Nil
Previous Minute Reference:  Audit & Scrutiny Committee, 19 April 2018

Page 58



Audit & Scrutiny Committee – 24 October 2019 

Note – You can get this document on tape, in Braille, large print and various computer 
formats by contacting the address below.  Lesley Munro can also give information on 
other language translations as well as providing additional copies.

Contact us at Lesley Munro, Scottish Borders Council, Council HQ, Newtown St 
Boswells, Melrose, TD6 0SA.  Tel:  01835 824000 ext 8046  Email:  
lmunro@scotborders.gov.uk 

Page 59

mailto:lmunro@scotborders.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Minute.
	5a Petitions Procedure at Committee
	5b Kelso Play Parks Petition
	Item No. 5(b)(i) - 2 Kelso playparks petition - Change.org comments
	Item No. 5(b)(ii) - Report on Play Parks Petition, Kelso - Audit & Scrutiny Committee - 24 October 2019

	5c Hawick Play Parks Petition
	Item No. 5(c)(i) - 2 Hawick Playparks Petition - Change.org comments
	Item No. 5(c)(i) - 3 Hawick Playparks Petition - Change.org names
	Item No. 5(c)(ii) - Report on Play Parks Petition, Hawick - Audit & Scrutiny Committee - 24 October 2019

	6 Community Access to Schools

